
  

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2011 
5:00 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:00 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

September 26, 2011, Special Meeting 
October 4, 2011, Regular Meeting 
October 4, 2011, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 18, 2011 AGENDA  11 
5:05 4  PROPOSED PROCLAMATION FOR FARM CITY WEEK MR. JIM HAMILTON 13 
5:10 5  PROPOSED LETTER OF INTENT TO PURCHASE OLD HIGH 

SCHOOL PROPERTY 
MS. DIANE FOUNTAIN 15 

5:15 6  TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BID AWARD REQUEST 
FOR PLAYGROUND CONTRACT AT ROCKY KNOB PARK  

MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE 17 

5:20 7  REGISTER OF DEEDS SOFTWARE REQUESTS MS. JOANN TOWNSEND 23 
5:25 8  MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A. Bid Award Request for Roof Repairs to Health 
Department and Library Buildings 

B. Bid Award Requests for Courthouse/Law 
Enforcement Center Renovations 

MR. ROBERT MARSH  
35 

 
45 

5:30 9  FINANCE MATTERS 
A. Budget Amendments 
B. Bid Award Request for Surplus Property 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
55 
57 

5:35 10  PLANNING & INSPECTIONS MATTERS 
A. Acceptance of NC Rural Center Grant   
B. Public Hearing Request – Proposed Budget 

Amendment for CDBG Scattered Site Housing Project 

MR. JOE FURMAN  
61 
83 

5:40 11  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Resolution Approving Smoky Mountain 

Center’s Purchase of Property 
B. Request for Release of Funds to Humane Society Per 

Agreement for Construction of the Animal Shelter 
C. Road Maintenance Request from Top O’ Boone 

Subdivision 
D. Boards & Commissions 
E. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
85 

 
89 

 
91 

 
95 

101 



Page 2 
Tuesday, October 18, 2011 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:45 12  PUBLIC COMMENT  103 
6:45 13  BREAK  103 
 6:50 14  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 103 

 7:00 15  ADJOURN   

 
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
September 26, 2011, Special Meeting 
October 4, 2011, Regular Meeting 
October 4, 2011, Closed Session 
 
 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2011 

 
 
 The Watauga County Board of Commissioners attended a special meeting on Monday, 
September 26, 2011, in the Broyhill Room at Broyhill Inn, ASU, Boone, NC.  The 
Intergovernmental Retreat agenda included a presentation focused on the economy.  Those 
present were:  Chairman Miller, Vice-Chairman Blust, Commissioner Gable, County Manager 
Geouque, and Clerk to the Board Fogle.  Others present were as follows: 
 
• Appalachian State University:  Interim VC for Business Affairs Greg Lovins; Attorney 

Dayton Cole and Professor Harry Davis  
• Town of Beech Mountain:  Council Member Rick Miller; Town Manager Randy Feierabend; 

and Town Clerk Jennifer Broderick 
• Town of Blowing Rock:  Mayor J. B. Lawrence; Council Members Doug Matheson, Jim 

Steele, Thomas Klutz, Albert Yount, and Phil Pickett; Town Manager Scott Hildebran; and 
Town Clerk Sharon Greene 

• Town of Boone:  Council Members Andy Ball and Rennie Brantz; Town Manager Greg 
Young; Deputy Town Clerk Kim Brown, and Robert Ohlen 

• Town of Seven Devils:  Town Manager Ed Evans 
• High Country Council of Governments:  Planning Director Phil Trew 
• Others:  Lauren Ohnesorge, Watauga Democrat; and Anna Oakes, High Country Press 
 
Mr. Phil Trew, High Country Council of Governments, called the joint meeting to order at 5:05 
P.M. by welcoming everyone and calling for introductions.   
 
After dinner was served, Mr. Trew introduced Dr. Harry Davis, Professor in ASU’s Department 
of Finance, Banking, and Insurance, who gave a presentation entitled “The National, State, and 
Local Economies.”  The main points of Dr. Davis’ presentation included the following: 
 

• US has officially been out of the recession for two years 
• Past recoveries have been fueled by residential construction which was currently not the 

case 
• Large companies were doing well, but were holding onto capital and, therefore, not 

investing in machinery and/or people 
• Manufacturing output was growing, but slowly and with fewer workers 
• Companies that sold product internationally were doing well 
• Ratio of household debt/income rose from 80% in 1990s to 116% in 2010 
• Fastest growing area of consumer debt was in the form of adults borrowing money for 

education 
• US ranks 17th in the world in homeownership rates 
• Housing values continued to fall, but were beginning to stabilize 
• Mortgage applications were at a 15-year low 
• 20 million adult children currently live with their parents  
• Tax systems in other developed nations were structurally different than in the US – other 

countries give tax breaks to businesses; US gives tax breaks to families 

DRAFT 
101811 BCC Meeting

2



• US was experiencing a lot of layoffs in state and local governments 
• More than 50% of US debt was owed to foreigners 
• 10,000 Americans reach retirement age per day 
• Bureau of Labor Statistics indicate that there were currently 3.2 million job openings; 

however, employees skilled for those positions were not available 
• After six years of college, 44% of attendees did not graduate  
• Most new jobs being created do not require college degrees 

 
Mr. Trew stated that the date and time for the next Intergovernmental Retreat would be 
announced when scheduled. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:57 P.M. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

101811 BCC Meeting

3



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2011 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
October 4, 2011, at 8:00 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    David Blust, Vice-Chairman 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 
    Vince Gable, Commissioner 
    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 8:05 A.M. 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Gable led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the September 12, 2011, special 
meeting minutes and the September 19, 2011, regular and closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the September 12, 
2011, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
County Manager Geouque requested the following two amendments (additions in bold and 
deletions struck-through) to the September 19, 2011, regular meeting minutes: 
 
Under “Miscellaneous Administrative Matters, A. Recommended Contract Awards for 
Employee Medical, Dental, and Life Insurance:” 
 

“Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to award the bid for employee 
dental and life insurance to LFG as presented by the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
Nay-0 
Absent-1(Futrelle)” 

DRAFT 
101811 BCC Meeting

4



Under “Miscellaneous Administrative Matters, B. Contract Renewal Request for Inmate Medical 
Care:” 

“County Manager Geouque stated that the Sheriff’s Office had requested renewal of a contract 
with Competent Correctional Care, Inc. for the provision of medical care and staffing of the 
County jail.  The cost was $7,578 per month for services for 90 inmates and was to increase to 
$12,642 if/when the population grew to between 90-135 inmates.  The County Manager stated that 
funds were available to cover the contract within the Sheriff’s Office budget. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the contract with 
Competent Correctional Care, Inc. in an amount up to $12,642 $7,578 per month, contingent upon 
County Attorney review. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle)” 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the September 19, 
2011, regular meeting minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
By consensus, consideration of the closed session minutes was tabled until after closed session to 
allow for the review of proposed amendments. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the October 4, 2011, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add possible action after closed session. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the October 4, 2011, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION IN SUPPORT OF 2012 “ROCK THE BLUE RIDGE BIKE 
RIDE” 
Ms. Lora Elder presented a proposed proclamation of support for a 100-mile bike ride entitled 
“Rock the Blue Ridge” which was planned for August 26, 2012. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

101811 BCC Meeting

5



BOARD OF EDUCATION REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS 
Watauga County School’s Finance Director, Ms. Ly Marze, presented requests for the following 
State applications for Education Lottery funding: 
 
• Replacement of carpets and floor tiles in the classrooms at Green Valley, Hardin Park, 

Parkway, and Valle Crucis Elementary Schools, in the amount of $36,000, with an estimated 
project beginning date of October 1, 2011, and completion date of June 1, 2012. 

• Restroom renovations at Parkway Elementary School, in the amount of $6,000, with an 
estimated project beginning date of December 1, 2011, and completion date of January 31, 
2012. 

• Replacement of sidewalk near the bus parking lot at Blowing Rock Elementary School, in the 
amount of $2,000, with an estimated project beginning date of October 1, 2011, and 
completion date of December 31, 2011. 

• Add door sweeps to weatherize the building for winter weather at Blowing Rock Elementary 
School, in the amount of $480, with an estimated project beginning date of October 1, 2011, 
and completion date of December 31, 2011. 

 
Ms. Marze also requested approval for an additional application for upgrades in all of the school 
cafeterias, in the amount of $30,000. 
 
The total amount requested for the five applications was $74,480 with no local match required. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve all five Education 
Lottery Fund applications as presented by Ms. Marze. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION OF STATE FUNDS FOR SENIOR CENTERS 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte stated that the Project on Aging was eligible to receive an additional 
$16,274 in Senior Center funding from the North Carolina General Assembly and the North 
Carolina Division of Aging.  This amount requires a 25% local match which was currently in the 
Agency’s existing budget.  The funds were to be allocated as follows:  $12,205 to the L. E. 
Harrill Senior Center, as a Center of Excellence, and $4,069 to the Western Watauga Community 
Center. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to accept the funding and 
approve the local match as presented by Ms. Boitnotte. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

101811 BCC Meeting

6



PROPOSED CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES AT THE SWIM COMPLEX 
County Maintenance Director Robert Marsh presented a proposed contract for engineering 
services with Sutton-Kennerly & Associates, Inc., Consulting Engineers (SKA), in an amount 
not to exceed $10,000.  The contract was for design of frame base repairs and cursory evaluation 
of the lateral bracing system at the swim complex.  SKA had provided a report in February 2011, 
detailing the general conditions of the swim complex.  As part of the report, high priority repairs 
were identified and one of those repairs was to be addressed through the proposed contract. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the Board could exempt the project from the Request for 
Qualification process as outlined in NCGS 143‑64.31 based on the project fee being less than 
$30,000 and SKA’s familiarity with the project. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to award the contract, in an 
amount not to exceed $10,000, to Sutton-Kennerly & Associates, Inc., Consulting Engineers and 
exempt the County from the qualification based selection process due to project costs of less than 
$30,000 and Sutton-Kennerly & Associates, Inc., Consulting Engineers’ familiarity with the 
project. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
September 2011.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 

B. Refunds and Releases 
Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for September 2011 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for September 2011, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Rural Center Grant Agreement Amendment # 4 for the Boone/Blowing Rock 
Interconnection Project 

County Manager Geouque presented an amendment to the Rural Center contract which was a 
pass-through grant to the County to help with the construction of the Boone/Blowing Rock 

101811 BCC Meeting

7



emergency water interconnect.  The amendment was to add three months to the contract and 
reduce the County’s portion of the budget from $445,513 to $336,977.56.  The additional time 
was needed for staff to close-out the project and the reduction in cost was due to the project 
coming in under budget. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve Amendment # 4 to 
the Rural Center Grant Agreement for the Boone/Blowing Rock emergency water interconnect 
as presented by the County Manger. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B.  Boards & Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Watauga County Library Board had recommended that 
Mr. Hugh Hagaman and Ms. Kathy Idol both be reappointed to the Watauga County Library 
Board with both terms set to expire on August 31, 2015.   
 
The Watauga County Library Board recommended that Mr. Hugh Hagaman also be reappointed 
as a Watauga County representative on the Appalachian Regional Library Board.  This term was 
also set to expire August 31, 2015. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to waive second readings and 
reappoint Mr. Hugh Hagaman to both the Watauga County Library Board and the Appalachian 
Regional Library Board and reappoint Ms. Kathy Idol to the Watauga County Library Board 
with all three terms to expire August 31, 2015. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C.  Announcements 
County Manager Geouque announced that effective October 1, 2011, Watauga Humane Society 
now managed all aspects of shelter operations for animals handled by the Watauga County 
Animal Care and Control Department.  Based on an agreement with the Society, Watauga 
County no longer housed, cared for, or controlled domestic animals picked up, impounded, 
and/or confiscated by the Watauga County Animal Care and Control Department.  The County 
Manager stated that the County’s Animal Care and Control Officers would continue to enforce 
the Watauga County Animal Care and Control Ordinance and the Ordinance to Regulate Wild 
and Dangerous Animals and would continue to respond to service calls pertaining to domestic 
animals. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that a Hazardous Household Waste Collection Day was 
scheduled for October 8, 2011, from 9:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. at the Landfill.   Operation 
Medicine Cabinet was also scheduled for the same date and set to run from 10:00 A.M. to 2:00 
P.M. at all Food Lions in the County and Foscoe and Beaver Dam Volunteer Fire Departments. 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

8



County Manager Geouque announced that the Annual County Christmas Luncheon was 
scheduled for Tuesday, December 13, 2011, from 12:00 to 2:00 P.M. at the Dan’l Boone Inn.  
The Board and County Attorney were invited to attend. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that a “Turning of the Valve” ceremony was scheduled for 
the Boone/Blowing Rock Water Interconnection Project on Wednesday, October 19, 2011, at 
5:00 P.M.  The ceremony would be held across from Tweetsie Railroad on Hwy 321 at the meter 
vault between both water systems. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the Watauga High School Student Body had invited 
the Board to participate in and/or join the crowd of spectators for their 2011 Homecoming 
Parade scheduled for 5:00 P.M. on Friday, October 7, 2011, on King Street. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 8:26 A.M., Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to resume the open meeting at 
10:14 A.M. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the “Amendment to 
Interlocal Agreement for the Provision of Behavioral Healthcare Services in Alleghany, Ashe, 
Avery, Watauga, and Wilkes Counties” as further amended below and authorized the Chairman 
to sign the agreement on the County’s behalf: 
 

• Accept Article I in its entirety 
• Accept Article II in its entirety 
• Delete Article III in its entirety 
• Accept Article IV, Section 1 with the 

deletion of the words “and operations” 
in both the title and last sentence of 
Section 1 

• Accept Article IV, Sections 2-3 in 
their entirety 

• Accept Article V, Sections 1-3 
• Delete Article V, Section 4 
• Accept Article VI in its entirety 

 
VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

101811 BCC Meeting

9



 
Chairman Miller appointed himself to serve as the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
Representative to the newly constituted New River Service Authority Board. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the September 19, 
2011, closed session minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust adjourned the meeting at 10:19 A.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 18, 2011, AGENDA 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION FOR FARM CITY WEEK 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Jim Hamilton, Director of Watauga County Cooperative Extension, will present a proposed 
proclamation which declares October 29 – November 3, 2011 as Farm City Week and calls upon 
citizens to support the County’s local agricultural economy and the 56th Annual Farm-City 
Banquet which will be held on Thursday, November 3, 2011 at 6:00 P.M. at the Boone United 
Methodist Church. The theme for this year’s banquet is “High Country Grown” as High Country 
grown produce, programs, and people will be celebrated. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

13



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA  
 

2011 

 FARM-CITY 

 PROCLAMATION 
 
 

WHEREAS, Agriculture and the businesses and organizations that support it continue to 
contribute to the economic growth and well-being of Watauga County; and 
 

WHEREAS, our farmers and farm families provide citizens of Watauga County healthy, 
High Country Grown products and are the backbone of our rural and urban communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the continued success of our County’s economy and heritage relies on 
strong relationships between Farm and City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Farm-City Banquet provides an opportunity for farm and city folks to 
become reacquainted. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, that the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners, do hereby declare the period of October 29 through November 3 to be Farm-
City Week and calls upon citizens of this county to continue to support our local agricultural 
economy and the 56th Annual Farm-City Banquet. 

 
 ADOPTED this the 18th day of October, 2011. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________   
   
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PROPOSED LETTER OF INTENT TO PURCHASE OLD HIGH SCHOOL PROPERTY 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Diane Fountain will present a Letter of Intent to purchase the old high school property.  You 
may wish to table consideration of this request to allow for consultation with the County 
Attorney in closed session regarding the legalities of the offer. 
 
Direction from the Board is requested. 
 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

15



	 	 	 LETTER	OF	INTENT		
	 	

OLD	WATAUGA	HIGH	SCHOOL	PROPERTY	
	 HIGHWAY	105,	BOONE,	NC	
	 74.641	ACRES	
	 BOOK	OF	RECORDS	1084	AT	PAGE	728,	
	 BOOK	OF	RECORDS	1084	AT	PAGE	732,	
	 BOOK	OF	RECORDS	1353	AT	PAGE	115.	
	
It	is	the	intention	of	Core	Asset	Group,	LLC,	to	purchase	the	above	stated	
property	from	the	County	of	Watauga,	North	Carolina	for	the	price	of	
$20,000,000.00.	This	shall	be	paid	in	the	increments	of	$5,000,000.00	a	year	
for	four	(4)	years,	beginning	with	the	$5,000,000.00	required	security	deposit	
which	will	be	held	in	escrow	for	a	due	diligence	period	to	be	determined.	
	
The	request	for	support	by	the	county	to	support	re‐installing	the	stoplight	in	
the	original	intersection,	is	made.	It	is	understood	that	the	decision	is	that	of	
the	Department	of	Transportation.	
	
There	will	be	property	donated	back	to	the	county	and	to	Appalachian	State	
University	by	Core	Asset	Group	from	the	above	stated	tract.	
	
The	developers	wish	to	establish	a	mixed	use	and	affordable	living	area,	with	
commercial	components.	
	
This	Letter	of	Intent,	if	acceptable,	will	be	followed	with	an	Official	Offer	to	
Purchase.	
	
	
Diane	Fountain	
(828)292‐2966	
Fountain	Development/Jim	Fountain	Realty,	Inc.	
Representatives	for	Core	Asset	Group,	LLC	

	

101811 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BID AWARD REQUEST FOR PLAYGROUND 
CONTRACT AT ROCKY KNOB PARK 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Eric Woolridge with the Tourism Development Authority will request the Board award a 
contract to Beanstalk Journeys, in the amount of $75,000, for the construction of a playground at 
Rocky Knob Park.  The construction of the playground will satisfy a portion of the County’s 
obligation with regards to the $500,000 PARTF grant.  The project will be fully funded by the 
TDA. 
 
Board approval is requested to award the contract to Beanstalk Journeys, contingent upon 
County Attorney’s review. 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

17



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners  
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, Tourism Planner 

Watauga County Tourism Development Authority 
 
Date: October 11, 2011 
 
Re:   Award of Playground Contract for Rocky Knob Park 
 
 
On September 16th the Watauga County TDA issued a Request for Proposals to hire a 
qualified contractor to build a playground at Rocky Knob Park. With the completion of 
this facility, the bike skills area, and other facilities currently under contract, Watauga 
County will fulfill their obligations for the $500,000 Parks and Recreation Trust Fund 
grant. 
 
Staff recommends that Watauga County issue Beanstalk Journeys the $75,000 contract to 
construct the adventure playground at Rocky Knob Park. Joe Furman, Stephen Poulos, 
and I all met to review the six submitted proposals. In our opinion, the Beanstalk 
Journeys’ product was most in alignment with environment at Rocky Knob Park, while 
providing for a variety of recreation uses. Please find attached Beanstalk Journey’s 
playground conceptual graphic and pictures. 
 
This project will be fully funded from grant sources and the Watauga County TDA. No 
Watauga County funds are requested for this project. 
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

18



 

Beanstalk Journeys Adventure 
Playground  

At Rocky Knob Park Proposal 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposal Presented to Watauga 
County Tourism Development 
Authority 
 
 
 
Prepared by  
Beanstalk Journeys LLC 
Jonas Ridge, NC 
September 30, 2011 
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

19



Scope and Proposal for Watauga County Development Authority  
Prepared by Beanstalk Journeys LLC  Page 2 of 4 

Beanstalk Adventure Playground Proposal 
 

Rocky Knob Park  
 
 
 
 
Overview: 
 
Beanstalk Journeys LLC will provide the installation, including design, construction, and 
operational equipment, for the following: 
 

Beanstalk Adventure Playground 
 
 
 
General description: 
 
The Adventure Playground offers over 300 feet of linear activity that provide different levels of 
challenge for kids, allowing them to work out while playing and having fun. Giant hemlock 
logs and 8x8 treated post compose the foundation of the structure, that sustains a large 8x8 tree 
house on top and provides the layout of initiatives below. A combination of one inch nylon 
rope, chain and craftsmen work provide an exciting arena for endless play. The design requires 
minimum maintenance and repair. 

101811 BCC Meeting

20



Scope and Proposal for Watauga County Development Authority  
Prepared by Beanstalk Journeys LLC  Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Design Specifications: 
 
• Nine Hemlock logs will be used for the structural foundation being connected by sixteen 

horizontal beams. 
 

• A 60’ x 60’ flat area is required for the playground footprint, a separate 12’x24’ flat area  is 
required for the swing installation, this is to comply with ASTM section 9.4.1. 

 
• The playground structure will be in compliance with ASTM safety standards for 

playground equipment for public use. 
 
• Sixteen events made of one–inch nylon rope, chain, and treated wood, will be located in 

between the giant hemlocks, approximately 16 feet wide. The events provide full body 
workout in a fun and challenging way. 

 
• An enclosed 8’x8’ tree house 

will be located on top of the 
center log. 

 
• Peripheral cribbing is provided 

to retain ground covering 
necessary for proper ground 
safety.   
 

• Appropriate safety signage will 
be provided. 

 
• Project completion time is 6 

weeks from time of signed 
contract and receipt of first 
draw. 

 
 
  
 
Key Personnel: 
 
The Beanstalk building team will consist of one project manager and two to three carpenters all 
who are beanstalk employees.  
 
Caleb Elkins (project manager), has been building The Beanstalk Adventure Playground for us 
for 5 years. He has been a major part the creation and development of this truly unique design. 
Caleb has proven his system of building to be efficient and has 17 Beanstalk Adventure 
Playgrounds to represent his quality of work. Caleb has also has extensive experience working 
in the challenge course industry where he is continuously refining his rigging and craftsmen 
skills.  

101811 BCC Meeting

21



Scope and Proposal for Watauga County Development Authority  
Prepared by Beanstalk Journeys LLC  Page 4 of 4 

 
Sean Condron (Carpenter), also has experience building this design, and has been a key part of 
some of our major projects.  
 
Warranty: 
 
Warranty: Beanstalk Journeys LLC. (BJ) warrants that the facility shall be free from structural 
defects and defects in workmanship under normal use and service, with the obligation of BJ 
under this warranty being limited to repairing and/or replacing any part of the goods which 
shall within two one year after the date of installation be determined defective.  
 
Warranty repairs and materials shall be provided within 30-days after notification by the 
owner. BJ shall have no obligation to repair or replace any part of the goods damaged by 
normal wear and tear, misuse, vandalism, act of God or other cause not the act of Seller. 
 
 
 Maintenance: 
 
The design offers minimal maintenance. A yearly inspection is necessary in order to ensure 
longevity of the product. Beanstalk charges $ 400,00 per inspection. That includes, structural 
analysis and any adjustment necessary on the events. After the inspection a written report will 
be provided for client’s records. 
 
 
Pricing:  
 
All portions for the design, installation and operational equipment will be provided.  
 
 
Beanstalk Adventure Playground      $75,000.00 
 
 
Terms:  
  

• 50% - $37,500.00  - Deposit with the signed agreement. 
 

• 30% - $22,500.00  - Mid project withdraw. 
 

• 20% - $15,000.00  - Upon completion of construction and installation. 
 
 
Yours in Adventure Education, 
 
 
 
 
 
Mike Fischesser 

101811 BCC Meeting

22



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

REGISTER OF DEEDS SOFTWARE REQUEST 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Register of Deeds, JoAnn Townsend, will present a request to award a contract to Courthouse 
Computer Systems, in the amount of $16,250, to cover the remainder of Fiscal Year 2012 for 
annual software maintenance, including conversion costs, web hosting, e-recording, pre-1985 
document sear solution, and compliance of the indexing standards to become effective January 1, 
2012.  The full maintenance fee of $32,500 will be locked-in for five years. 
 
Ms. Townsend also requests the Board award an additional contract to Courthouse Computer 
Systems, in the amount of $46,000, for on-site scanning of the indexes from 1872-1985. 
 
The total annual request is $62,250, however by changing vendors a $25,000 cost savings can be 
realized, reducing the request to $37,250.  The $37,250 may be allocated from the Register of 
Deeds Automation, Enhancement and Preservation Fund, per G.S. 161-11.3. 
 
The County Attorney has reviewed both proposed contracts with Courthouse Computer Systems. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

23



101811 BCC Meeting

24



Courthouse Computer Systems-Software License and Support Agreement 
 THIS AGREEMENT made by and between Courthouse Computer 
Systems, Inc. (“Licensor”) and the Watauga County Register of Deeds office 
(“Licensee”). 
The “Agreement” covers data conversion, licensing, software support website 
maintenance, and microfilm conversion for a contract period of January 1, 
2012 through June 30th 2016 as outlined below: 
 
1.  Definitions 
 1.1.  “Designated Environment” means the computer equipment 
currently in place in the office. 
 1.2.  “Error” means a material failure of the Software to function in 
conformity with the Specifications. 
 1.3.  “Licensed Copies” means the number of copies of the Software being 
licensed to the Licensee. 
 1.4.  “Location(s)” means the Licensee office at 842 West King Street, 
Boone, NC 28607. 
 1.5.  “Office” means the Watauga County Register of Deeds office. 
 1.6. “Software” refers to any of the supported software modules defined 
in section two of this Agreement. 
 
2.  Software Modules Included 
 1.  Document Recording and Cashiering 
 2.  Document Indexing  
 3.  Document Retrieval 
 4.  Document Imaging 
 5.  Internet Document Retrieval 
 6.  Fee Reporting 
 7.  Vital Records Management 
 8.  Marriage License Issuance 
 9.  Online Marriage Application (both Internet and Office Kiosk) 
 10.  Image Redaction 
 11.  E-Recording 
 12.  User Accounting-including support of escrow accounts 
 
Functionality incorporated within these software modules includes, but is not 
limited to: 
 1.  The ability to easily export records in the system to an ASCII text file 
format to ensure forward compatibility without costly data conversion if the 
county decides to switch to a different software vendor at a later date.  This 
guarantees complete safety and security by ensuring that your data will always 
be readable in the future.  The Register of Deeds office can create and store 
these files on a daily basis. 
 2.  The seamless integration of Point of Sale (POS) stations with the 
indexing system.  The POS module operates as the office cash register by 

101811 BCC Meeting

25



controlling the cash drawer, printing receipts, and producing detailed ledger 
reports of all transactions. 
 3.  The immediate accessibility of documents for in-office retrieval.  If 
desired, original documents may be scanned immediately for viewing on 
retrieval stations throughout the office. 
 4.  The automatic generation of monthly reports that reference the 
complete set of financial data maintained in the system. 
 5.  The ability to print traditional index books on-demand. 
 6.  The ability to print traditional document books on-demand. 
 7.  The ability to back-index and back scan vital records. 
 8.  The ability to back-scan document books. 
 9.  Compliance with the existing North Carolina Standards for Indexing 
Real-Property documents as well as the new set of standards that will take 
effect January 1st, 2012. 
 10.  Perform those functions and operate in compliance with all 
representations contained in Licensor’s promotional literature. 
 
3.  Services Provided by Licensor 
 1.  Data Conversion-the Licensor will convert all existing document 
images.  Licensor will also convert and load all indexing data from the existing 
software system.  All document image conversion and computerized index data 
conversion will be conducted as part of the Agreement. 
 2.  Website Maintenance- The Licensor will provide Internet hosting of 
Land Record Indexes and Images for the Licensee.  The Licensee will have the 
capability to upload new index information and images on a daily basis. 
 3.  Telephone Support- The Licensor will provide telephone numbers that 
can be used as needed by the Licensee for assistance regarding the supported 
Software Modules and services.  Telephone support is available during normal 
business hours (8:00AM to 5:00PM Monday through Friday).  Licensor 
responds to all telephone support issues based upon the criticality of the issue, 
with systems that are completely non-functional receiving highest priority.  
Licensor endeavors, but does not guarantee, to respond to all non-critical 
issues within one business day. 
 4.  Remote Support-Licensor will provide remote on-line support for the 
software modules through direct broadband connectivity provided by the 
Licensee.  Remote online support allows the Licensor to perform system 
troubleshooting and make certain updates or configuration changes more 
quickly. Licensor agrees that it shall use the method of Remote Access chosen 
by the Licensee.  This method may be subject to change as determined by the 
Information Technology Director for Licensee. 
 5.  Microfilm Copies- The Licensor will be responsible for regular creation 
of archival copies of documents by converting the scanned images into 
microfilm.  Licensor will deliver microfilm copies to the North Carolina 
Department of Archives.  Upon delivery of each batch of microfilm copies, 
Licensee will be sent confirmation of the individual books included in the 
batch. 

101811 BCC Meeting

26



 6.  Additional Services-The Licensor is available to provide additional 
services as needed at separately negotiated rates that are not included within 
the terms of this Agreement.  These services include, but are not limited to, 
back-file document scanning, and making images of old index books 
electronically searchable. 
 7.  Statutory Changes-If changes are required either by general statute or 
state guidelines, the licensor will make necessary software updates at no 
charge to ensure compliance. 
 
4.  Licensee Responsibilities 
 1.  Licensee shall permit secured remote access to the Supported server 
and PC desktops in order for Licensor to provide service. 
 2.  Licensee shall periodically complete a total backup of all databases 
maintained by the office. 
 3.  Licensee shall permit free and full access, including secure remote 
access, to the Supported Hardware in order for Licensor to provide service. 
 4.  Licensee shall provide equipment that is dependable and sufficient to 
meet the needs of the office. 
 5.  Licensee shall provide remote connectivity, using a method of 
Licensee’s choosing, so that Licensor can securely connect to the network and 
access individual machines in the Register of Deeds office to provide support. 
 
5. Licensor Responsibilities  
 1.  Licensor shall protect any of the Licensee’s confidential information 
and shall not disclose any of the Licensee’s information, public or private, to 
any third party without written consent from the Watauga County Register of 
Deeds. 
 2.  While the Licensor is connected to Watauga County over VPN, the 
Licensor shall protect the County network by maintaining current antivirus 
software and updates on any connecting PC’s and not attempting to connect to 
any PC’s or servers on the Watauga County network that are not PC’s or 
servers used by the Register of Deeds office. 
 3.  Licensor shall not disclose any of Watauga County’s network or 
authentication information to third parties without the written consent of the 
Watauga County Information Technologies Director. 
 4.  Licensor shall not change any security settings on PC’s or servers 
without the written consent of the Watauga County Information Technologies 
Director.  Security settings may include but are not limited to the creation of 
network shares, firewall settings, user group assignment, and folder or registry 
permissions. 
 
6.  Loaner Equipment 
During the installation of software in the office, the Licensor may loan 
computer equipment to assist in the transition.  All equipment provided by the 
Licensor remains the property of the Licensor.  Any loaner equipment provided 
by the Licensor will be done so free of charge. 

101811 BCC Meeting

27



 
7.  Software License 
Licensor grants Licensee a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use up to 
sixteen copies of the Software and Documentation solely for its internal 
operations at the Location(s) and on the Designated Environment for the term 
of this Agreement.  All Software and Documentation remains the property of 
the Licensor.  Licensee agrees to not make unauthorized copies of the Software 
and Documentation. 
 
8.  Proprietary Rights 
Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the copyright, patent, trade secret, and 
all other intellectual property rights of whatever nature in the Software or 
Documentation are and shall remain the property of the Licensor, and nothing 
in this Agreement should be construed as transferring any aspect of such 
rights to the Licensee. 
 
9.  Confidentiality 
 9.1 Confidential Information 
 “Confidential Information”, shall mean the Software, Documentation, and 
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Licensee acknowledges the 
confidential and proprietary nature of the Confidential Information and agrees 
that it shall not reveal or disclose any Confidential Information for any purpose 
to any other person, firm, corporation, or other entity, other than office or 
county employees with a need to know such confidential information to 
perform employment responsibilities consistent with Licensee’s rights under 
this Agreement.  Licensee shall safeguard and protect the Confidential 
Information from theft, piracy, or unauthorized access in a matter at least 
consistent with the protections Licensee uses to protect its own most 
confidential information and in a manner conforming to industry standards, 
whichever is greater. 
  
 9.2 Unauthorized Disclosure 
 Licensee shall notify Licensor immediately upon discovery of any 
prohibited use or disclosure of Confidential Information, or any other breach of 
confidentiality and shall fully cooperate with the efforts of Licensor to regain 
possession of the Confidential Information and to prevent the further 
prohibited use or disclosure of the Confidential Information. 
 
10.  Warranty 
 Licensor represents to Licensee that: (1) during the Agreement Period, 
the Software shall operate without any Errors; and (2) upon notification to 
Licensor during the Agreement Period of any errors, Licensor will, during its 
normal business hours and at no cost to Licensee, use reasonable efforts to 
correct such Errors which are reproducible and verifiable by Licensor.  Licensor 
further warrants that the Software will perform its intended purpose and shall 
comply with all representations made in its promotional literature. 

101811 BCC Meeting

28



 
11.  Price 
For the Software License and Implementation Services outlined in this 
Agreement, Licensee agrees to pay Licensor and initial fee of $16,250.00 
annual maintenance from January 1 to June 30, 2012.  Annual maintenance 
and support will be provided for a fee of $32,500 and no cents.  Licensor will 
provide up to 60 hours of initial data conversion and software customization as 
part of this agreement free of charge.  The Licensor agrees that the annual 
maintenance and support fee for the services outlined in this Agreement will 
not increase for the duration of the Agreement. 
 
Annual maintenance for e-recording will be billed at an additional annual fee of 
$2,000.00. 
 
12.  Optional Additional Services 
 
 12.1  Converting Images to Microfilm 
 Licensor will convert digital document images onto microfilm and will 
deliver this film to North Carolina State Archives.  The cost of converting to 
microfilm will be .05 per image. 
 
 12.2  Customization and Extensive Data Conversion 
 Additional time allotments for initial data conversion and software 
customization are available on a time and materials basis of $110 per hour. 
 
13.  Term and Termination of Agreement 
 
 13.1  Termination and Remedy 
 Licensee may terminate the Agreement without prejudice to any other 
remedy Licensee may have, in the event of any material breach of this 
Agreement which is not remedied within thirty days of Licensee’s notice to 
Licensor of the breach and Licensee’s intent to terminate the License.  
Termination shall not relieve Licensee’s obligation to pay all amounts that are 
already accrued and owing or which Licensee has agreed to pay. 
   
 13.2 Breach 
 The Licensor may terminate this Agreement, without prejudice to any 
other remedy Licensor may have, immediately without further obligation to 
Licensee, in the event of any breach by Licensee, which cannot be remedied 
within thirty days of Licensor’s notice to Licensee of the breach and Licensor’s 
intent to terminate the License. 
  
 13.3  Cessation of Use 
 Upon Termination of this Agreement, Licensee will cease using the 
Software and Documentation and return all copies of the Software, 
Documentation, and all other Confidential Information in its possession or 

101811 BCC Meeting

29



destroy all copies of such materials residing in computer memory.  Licensor 
shall be entitled to enter the Location(s) to repossess any Software, 
Documentation, and any other Confidential Information, so long as such 
repossession does not compromise the future ability of the Register of Deeds to 
access and retrieve electronic records in accordance with the statutory duties 
of the Register of Deeds.  Licensee shall, within thirty days from the effective 
date of termination, certify in writing that all copies of the Software and 
Documentation have been returned, deleted and destroyed. 
 
 13.4  Non-Appropriation 
 Licensor acknowledges that Licensee is a governmental entity, and the 
contract validity is based upon the availability of public funding under the 
authority of its statutory mandate. 
 
 In the event that public funds are unavailable and not appropriate for 
the performance of Licensee’s obligations under this contract, then this 
contract shall automatically expire without penalty to Licensee thirty (30) days 
after written notice to Licensor of the unavailability and non-appropriation of 
public funds.  It is expressly agreed that Licensee shall not activate this non-
appropriation provision for its convenience or to circumvent the requirements 
of this contract, but only as an emergency fiscal measure during a substantial 
fiscal crisis, which affects generally its governmental operations. 
 
 In the event of a change in the Licensee’s statutory authority, mandate 
and mandated functions, by state and federal legislative or regulatory action, 
which adversely affects Licensee’s authority to continue its obligations under 
this contract, then this contract shall automatically terminate without penalty 
to Licensee upon written notice to Licensor of such limitation or change in 
Licensee’s legal authority. 
 
14.  Renewal 
This Agreement will renew automatically for subsequent terms of one year. 
Licensor shall notify Licensee sixty days in advance of the renewal date of any 
changes to the Agreement.  Acceptance will be assumed if the Licensee does 
not notify Licensor at least thirty days prior to the renewal date. 
 
15.  Validity 
If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity 
or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected. 
 
16.  Survival 
Sections 7, 8 and 9 shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any 
reason. 
 
17.  Entire Agreement 

101811 BCC Meeting

30



This Agreement and its schedules and Addendums comprise the entire 
Agreement between the parties for licensing and support and is not subject to 
change or modification except by written Agreement signed by both parties. 
 
18.  Assignment 
 Neither party may assign this agreement without the written consent of 
the other party to this Agreement. 
 
 
LICENSOR:       LICENSEE: 
 
__________________________    ____________________________ 
Signature       Nathan A. Miller  
        Chairman, Watauga County  
__________________________    Commissioners 
Name 
 
__________________________ 
Title 
 
__________________________    ____________________________ 
Date        Date 
 
        Attest: 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Anita Fogle 
        Clerk to the Board 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Officer 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

31



Courthouse Computer Systems - Agreement for Scanning Services 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT made by and between Courthouse Computer 
Systems, Inc. (“Provider”) and the Watauga County Register of Deeds office 
(“Customer”). 
 
The “Agreement” sets forth the terms and conditions under which Provider will 
provide document scanning services to Customer.  Licensing and support for 
custom developed software to make the scanned images searchable online is 
contained within a separate agreement. 
 
1.  Definitions 
 1.1. “Materials” means the sixty-four Grantor and Grantee index Books 
COVERING THE TIME PERIOD OF 1872-1985 that will be scanned. 
 1.2.  “Location(s)” means the Customer office at 842 West King Street, 
Boone, NC 28607. 
 1.3.  “Office” means the Watauga County Register of Deeds office. 
 
2.  Document Scanning Services. 
During the term of this Agreement, Courthouse Computer Systems will perform 
the digital scanning of sixty-four Grantor and Grantee Index Books to make 
these books electronically searchable through Courthouse Computer Systems 
integrated Online Index Books search functionality.  Every page that contains 
index information will be scanned and individually reviewed.  Poor quality 
images will be digitally enhanced as necessary or rescanned as required to 
ensure that the output images are of high quality.  In the event that pages exist 
in the index book at the time of initial scanning but are inadvertently skipped 
and not scanned, Courthouse Computer Systems will be responsible for 
scanning the missing pages and integrating them so that the Online Index 
Books function without gaps or problems. 
Courthouse Computer Systems will perform all document scanning onsite.  The 
original Materials will remain on Customer’s premises at all times.  Courthouse 
Computer Systems will setup its scanning equipment in the Customer’s 
workplace.  Quality assurance and image enhancement may occur onsite or 
offsite using the digital representation of the original Material.  The quality of 
the images prepared shall be done to the satisfaction of the Watauga County 
Register of Deeds. 
Provider shall use best efforts to ensure that the original documents of the 
Register of Deeds are not damaged during the term of this Agreement by 
Provider or its agents.  Provider will establish the search-ability of the database 
of these records to the satisfaction of the Register of Deeds. 
 
3.  Pricing and Payment. 
Courthouse Computer Systems will perform the scanning and configuration for 
online searching for a total price of $46,000 and no cents.   This fee will be 
divided into three installments of $15,333, $15,333, and $15,334 respectively.  

101811 BCC Meeting

32



The first installment will be invoiced when 40% if this contract is complete.  
The second installment will be executed after Courthouse Computer Systems 
has notified the Customer that they have completed 80% of the project.  The 
third installment will be invoiced after the project has been completed and the 
Customer agrees that the services performed met their expectations.  Customer 
agrees to pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
 
 
PROVIDER:       CUSTOMER: 
 
 
__________________________    ____________________________ 
Signature       Nathan A. Miller  
        Chairman, Watauga County  
__________________________    Commissioners 
Name 
 
__________________________ 
Title 
 
__________________________    ____________________________ 
Date        Date 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Anita Fogle 
        Clerk to the Board 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Officer 

101811 BCC Meeting

33



Blank Page 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

34



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A.  Bid Award Request for Roof Repairs to Health Department and Library Buildings 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will request the Board award a contract to LaFave’s 
Construction Company, Inc., for the replacement of gutters and the installation of a new snow 
retention system at the Health Department in the amount of $22,445.  Mr. Marsh also requests 
the acceptance of LaFave’s Construction’s recommendation to add SnoClips™ to the Library 
snow retention system at a cost of $2,983. 
 
In 2010, the County’s insurance provider paid the claim for the repair of the existing snow 
retention system at the Health Department due to several failures since the building was 
constructed in 2003.  With a carryover purchase order of $13,600 available, $11,828 will be 
allocated from the Maintenance Department’s budget to fund the project. 
 
Board action is requested to award the contract to LaFave’s Construction Company, Inc., in the 
amount of $25,428, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

35



101811 BCC Meeting

36



101811 BCC Meeting

37



101811 BCC Meeting

38



101811 BCC Meeting

39



101811 BCC Meeting

40



101811 BCC Meeting

41



101811 BCC Meeting

42



101811 BCC Meeting

43



Blank Page 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

44



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

B.  Bid Award Requests for Courthouse/Law Enforcement Center Renovations  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Marsh will request the Board award a contract to the low bidder, Dallas Lawrence 
Construction, in the amount of $4,345.25 for renovations to the Law Enforcement Center due to 
the recent relocation of the Sheriff’s Office Civil Division to the Courthouse.  The Sheriff has 
requested the room previously occupied by the Civil Division be divided into two offices by 
installing a partition wall and door.   
 
Included in the quote is the Board of Elections request to remove the prosecuting and defense 
tables from the downstairs courtroom during One-Stop Voting.  The tables are currently 
hardwired for both electricity and data and, therefore, cannot be moved without the installation 
of two floor outlets which will involve concrete demolition, carpet patching and electrical work. 
 
Board action is requested to award the contract to Dallas Lawrence Construction in the amount 
of $4,345.25 contingent upon the County Attorney’s review. 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

45



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
                                969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                                                    Fax     (828) 264-1473 
 
 
TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:  Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Courthouse/LEC Renovations 
 
DATE:  October 11, 2011 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Sheriff’s Office moved their Civil Division out of the Law Enforcement Center into the 
space previously occupied by the IT Department by the ground floor entrance in the Courthouse. 
The Sheriff has requested that Office #402 in the Law Enforcement Center be divided into two 
offices by the addition of a new partition wall and door. 
 
The renovation to the ground floor courtroom was requested by Board of Elections to allow the 
removal of the prosecuting and defense tables for One-Stop Voting.  Currently, the two tables are 
hardwired for electricity and data and cannot be moved.  In order for the tables to be moved, two 
floor outlets will need to be installed and this will involve concrete demolition, carpet patching 
and electrical work. 
 
Four contractors were contacted to submit pricing for these projects.  Three submitted pricing as 
summarized below. 
 

BID SUMMARY 
BIDDER LAW ENFORCEMENT 

CENTER 
GROUND FLOOR 
COURTROOM 

TOTAL 

Houck Contracting 
Hickory, NC 

$4,970.00 $1,070.00 $6,040.00 

Greene Construction 
Boone, NC 

$7,548.00 $3,292.00 $10,840.00 

Lawrence Construction 
Boone, NC 

$3,413.55 $931.70 $4,345.25 

Ronnie Jones Construction 
Boone, NC 

No Response No Response  

 
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

46



 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the low bidder, Dallas Lawrence Construction for this project. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Both of these projects are unfunded in FY 2011-12 and money will need to be identified from a 
source or use the Maintenance Miscellaneous budget line. 
 
Please let me know how you wish to proceed. 
 
 
 
 
 
. 

101811 BCC Meeting

47



101811 BCC Meeting

48



101811 BCC Meeting

49



101811 BCC Meeting

50



101811 BCC Meeting

51



101811 BCC Meeting

52



101811 BCC Meeting

53



101811 BCC Meeting

54



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce will review budget amendments as included along with an additional 
amendment that will be presented at the meeting.  The additional amendment is a result of 
actions taken at the October 13, 2011, special meeting regarding New River Service Authority 
issues. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

55



 

 

                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

         

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 

DATE:  October 11, 2011 

 

The following budget amendments require approval of the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

103300-352100  Criminal Justice Partnership Program  $64,139 

105210-469820  CJPP Grant    $64,139 

 

To recognize Department of Corrections grant funds. These funds require no County match and 

are a pass-through grant to fund a program for substance abuse treatment for parolees. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

103586-332004  State Senior Center Funding    $16,274 

105550-426000  Office Supplies   $1,500 

105550-429200  Program Supplies   $4,824 

105550-431200  Travel-Subsistence   $   500 

105550-431300  Client Transportation   $3,000 

105550-432100  Telephone    $   800 

105550-432500  Postage    $   200 

105550-434100  Printing    $   450 

105550-469514  Contracted Services-Instructors $5,000 

 

Per Board action 10-4-11; to recognize the award of the State Senior Center funding for aging 

services at the Lois E. Harrill Center and the Western Watauga Community Center. Required 

matching funds are present in the Project on Aging budget.  

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

103991-399102  Rural Ctr Water Interconnect Grant $108,535 

104199-469510  Rural Ctr Water Interconnect Grant   $108,535 

 

Per Board action 10-4-11, to reduce grant per revised agreement due to project savings.  

 

 

101811 BCC Meeting

56



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

B. Bid Award Request for Surplus Property 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce will review bids received through GovDeals.com for the purchase of real 
property recently surplused by the County.  The property was donated to the County and is 
located at 103 Windridge Road, Charter Hills, Lot D-32, Beech Mountain, NC.  The highest bid 
was submitted by Mr. Thomas O’Connell, in the amount of $8,510.01, with the appropriate 
deposit.  A list of all bids will be presented for review.  Closing is to occur within 60 days and all 
closing costs will be paid by the purchaser. 
 
Board action is requested to accept the high bid from Mr. Thomas O’Connell in the amount of 
$8,510.01. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

57



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

                                                                                                         
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Sale of Real Property 

DATE:  October 12, 2011 

 

 

Per the Resolution approved by the Board of Commissioners on September 6, 2011, 

property located at 103 Windridge Road, Charter Hills, Lot D-32, Beech Mountain, NC 

has been advertised and bids received. The list of bids is attached. The high bid of 

$8,510.01 was offered by Thomas O’Connell of 517 Schultz Road S, Sealy, TX. The bid 

deposit of $500 was received from Mr. O’Connell on October 5, 2011. This property was 

donated to Watauga County by the Estate of Weston Olberg in 2010. The property is 

approximately .36 acres and can be referenced at PIN #1950-46-8323-000. 

 

Acceptance of the high bid of $8,510.01 is required to finalize the sale of the property 

and is recommended by staff. Closing is to occur within 60 days and all closing costs will 

be paid by the purchaser. 

 

Board action on the sale of property is requested. 

 

 

 

101811 BCC Meeting

58



101811 BCC Meeting

59



101811 BCC Meeting

60



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PLANNING & INSPECTIONS MATTERS  

A.  Acceptance of NC Rural Center Grant 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Joe Furman, as the County’s Economic Development Director, will request the Board accept 
a NC Rural Center Building Reuse and Restoration Program grant award in the amount of 
$44,843.  The County applied for the grant in June per an Economic Development Commission 
request as a pass-through grant for Giant Street Ventures.  The grant required a commitment 
from Giant Street Ventures to create eight new jobs within eighteen months and maintain the 
same number for another six months.  The local match was to be covered by Mr. Furman’s 
administrative time which would total approximately 30 hours. 
 
Board action is requested to accept the grant award from the NC Rural Center in the amount of 
$44,843, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review of the grant contract. 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

61



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, October 10, 2011 9:34 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle; Four Eggers
Subject: NC Rural Center grant agreement
Attachments: Rural Ctr Grant agreements.pdf

Deron, 
The County applied for a $64,000 grant from the NC Rural Center in June, and was eventually awarded $44,843. 
Attached are the Commissioners minutes approving the grant application, the NC Rural Center approval letter, and the 
grant agreement. Commissioners’ approval is needed prior to executing the grant agreement and loan document. 
Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

62



101811 BCC Meeting

63



101811 BCC Meeting

64



101811 BCC Meeting

65



101811 BCC Meeting

66



101811 BCC Meeting

67



101811 BCC Meeting

68



101811 BCC Meeting

69



101811 BCC Meeting

70



101811 BCC Meeting

71



101811 BCC Meeting

72



101811 BCC Meeting

73



101811 BCC Meeting

74



101811 BCC Meeting

75



101811 BCC Meeting

76



101811 BCC Meeting

77



101811 BCC Meeting

78



101811 BCC Meeting

79



101811 BCC Meeting

80



101811 BCC Meeting

81



Blank Page 
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

82



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PLANNING & INSPECTIONS MATTERS  

B. Public Hearing Request – Proposed Budget Amendment for CDBG Scattered Site Housing 
Project 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman, Planning & Inspections Director, will request a public hearing be set to allow public 
comment on a proposed budget amendment to the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Program.  Due to the extent of repairs needed, a home originally 
scheduled for rehabilitation must be demolished and replaced with a double-wide manufactured 
home.  The home-owner was in agreement with the replacement; however, the CDBG program 
requires a public hearing be held prior to the approval of the budget amendments.  Due to the 
essence of time, the public hearing is requested to be scheduled for the November 1, 2011, Board 
meeting. 
 
Board action is requested to schedule a public hearing for November 1, 2011, per CDBG 
requirements. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

83



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, October 10, 2011 9:27 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Public Hearing Request

Deron, 
It has turned out that one of the houses scheduled for rehabilitation in the County’s Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing program cannot be repaired with funds available, and must be demolished and 
replaced with a double‐wide manufactured home instead. The owner has agreed to this plan. We will need to amend 
the CDBG budget to move funds from rehabilitation to replacement, and CDBG rules require a public hearing prior to 
making a budget amendment of that magnitude. Time is of the essence, so I request that a public hearing be scheduled 
for the November 1st Commissioners meeting. Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

84



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Resolution Approving Smoky Mountain Center’s Purchase of Property 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County Manager will present a proposed resolution which will authorize Smoky Mountain 
Center’s purchase of real property in Haywood County.  Since Smoky Mountain Center is the 
County’s Local Management Entity for mental health services a resolution approving the 
purchase must be adopted, pursuant to G. S. 122C-147(c), prior to the purchase of the property. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the resolution as presented. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

85



101811 BCC Meeting

86



 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY 
BY SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER 

 
 

WHEREAS, THE Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental 
Disabilities and Substance Abuse services (“Center”) is an area authority organized under North 
Carolina General Statute 122C, and as such serves as the Local Management Entity for the area 
consisting of fifteen counties; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Center has purchased certain real property in Haywood County, North 

Carolina, which it intends to use in the normal course of its business; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to G. S. 122C-147(c) each County in the fifteen County area must 

approve the purchase of real property by an area authority by resolution of the County 
Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property is described as lot # 2 on a plat entitled Haywood County 

prepared by Owns Surveying, PLS, dated 09/26/11, Project No. 11-01-104. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners, upon motion and second, and after discussion in open session, hereby approves 
the purchase of the property by the Center. 

 
ADOPTED this the 18th day of October, 2011. 

 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
         [SEAL] 
_______________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

DRAFT 

101811 BCC Meeting

87



101811 BCC Meeting

88



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Request for Release of Funds to Humane Society per Agreement for Construction of the 
Animal Shelter  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County Manager will request that the $400,000 one-time capital payment be released to the 
Humane Society per the agreement for the construction of the new animal shelter.  A request will 
also be made to release the annual maintenance fee in the amount of $56,250 pro-rated to reflect 
the October 1, move-in date. 
 
Board action is requested to release the one-time $400,000 capital payment and the $56,250 pro-
rated annual maintenance fee.  Adequate funds are available and have been budgeted in the 
current fiscal year. 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

89



Blank Page 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

90



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C.  Road Maintenance Request from Top O’ Boone Subdivision 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Top O’ Boone subdivision has requested a one-time donation of $2,000 for the purchase and 
installation of an electronic gate.  In addition, the subdivision is requesting a $1,000 annual 
contribution for road maintenance.   
 
No funds are budgeted for this expense and would require an allocation from the administrative 
contingency fund.  The Board may wish to exercise caution as this has the potential to set a 
precedent for future requests for assistance. 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

91



101811 BCC Meeting

92



101811 BCC Meeting

93



101811 BCC Meeting

94



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D.  Boards & Commissions 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The terms of County Board of Adjustment members Bill Ragan, Baxter Palmer, and Lyle 
Schoenfeldt will expire in November 2011.  NC General Statute 153A-345(a) requires that if a 
County has zoning in effect in less than the entire jurisdiction, a resident of each of the zoned 
areas shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners.  Bill Ragan, a regular member, lives in 
the Howard’s Creek Watershed, and is willing to be reappointed.  Baxter Palmer, an alternate 
member, lives in Foscoe, and is willing to be reappointed.  Lyle Schoenfeldt, a regular member, 
was the Valle Crucis Historic District representative, but no longer resides in that area; therefore, 
he is not eligible for reappointment as the Historic District’s representative.  Appeals for 
interested parties willing to serve were mailed and published on the County’s website.  Ms. 
Diana Mast White and Mr. Jason Connelly, residents of the Valle Crucis Historic District have 
expressed interest in serving.  Volunteer Applications are expected from both in the near future.  
 
These are first readings and, therefore, no action is required. 
    

101811 BCC Meeting

95



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, October 10, 2011 8:59 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: County Board of Adjustment

Deron, 
The County Board of Adjustment consists of five (5) members and one (1) alternate. Terms expire each November. Three 
(3) are expiring in 2011 – those of Bill Ragan, Baxter Palmer, and Lyle Schoenfeldt are expiring. NC General Statute 153A‐
345(a) requires that if a County has zoning in effect in less‐than the entire jurisdiction, a resident of each of the zoned 
areas shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners. Bill Ragan lives in the Howard’s Creek Watershed, and is willing 
to be reappointed. Baxter Palmer, the alternate member, lives in Foscoe, and is willing to be reappointed. Lyle 
Schoenfeldt was the Valle Crucis Historic District representative, but no longer lives there, so must be replaced. We 
mailed out and published on the County’s web site an appeal for interested parties, and were contacted by two (2) 
residents of the Historic District who are interested in being appointed to the Board of Adjustment: Ms. Diana Mast 
White and Mr. Jason Connelly. I expect to receive Volunteer Applications from both. Board of Adjustment terms are 
three (3) years. Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

96



101811 BCC Meeting

97



101811 BCC Meeting

98



101811 BCC Meeting

99



101811 BCC Meeting

100



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

E.  Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The 56th Annual Farm-City Banquet will be held on Thursday, November 3, 2011 at 6:00 P.M. 
at the Boone United Methodist Church. The theme for this year’s banquet is “High Country 
Grown.”  A local foods dinner will be served, followed by recognition of individuals for their 
contributions and support of our local agricultural economy. 
 
The Annual County Christmas Luncheon which will be held at Dan’l Boone Inn on Tuesday, 
December 13, 2011, from 12:00 to 2:00 P.M.  
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

101



Blank Page 
 
 
  

101811 BCC Meeting

102



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 

101811 BCC Meeting

103


	Approval of the Minutes
	Approval of the October 18, 2011, Agenda
	Proposed Proclamation for Farm City Week
	Proposed Letter of Intent to Purchase Old High School Property
	Tourism Development Authority Bid Award Request for Playground Contract at Rocky Knob Park
	Register of Deeds Software Request
	Maintenance Matters
	Maintenance Matters
	Finance Matters
	Finance Matters
	Planning & Inspections Matters
	Planning & Inspections Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	100411 REGULAR MINUTES Draft.pdf
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Agenda
	Proposed Proclamation in Support of 2012 “ROCK the Blue Ridge Bike Ride”
	Board of Education Request for Lottery Funds
	Additional Appropriation of State Funds for Senior Centers
	Proposed Contract for Engineering Services at the Swim Complex
	Tax Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Public Comment
	Closed Session
	Action After Closed Session
	Adjourn

	Maint  -  Courthouse LEC Renovations Request.pdf
	969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430

	TENTATIVE AGENDA 101811.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




